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The One Room Schoolhouse property located at 1455 Sykesville Road consists of a historic one-room school house that has been 
converted to a dwelling located on a .517 acre tract on the east side of Sykesville Road (MD Route 32), 170 feet south of 
Sykesville Road's intersection with Emory Farm Lane. The property is heavily wooded, with the main house located 80 feet east 
of Sykesville Road . View of the main house from Sykesville Road is obscured by the densely wooded nature of the property. An 
unpaved driveway cuts through the dense overgrowth and curves around the east side of the house ending at a garage. 

The One Room Schoolhouse is a one-story, wood-frame vernacular building with Colonial Revival influences. The two-by-three 
bay, building rests on a rubble stone foundation and contains exterior walls clad with plywood siding. The building is capped by 
an asphalt-shingle clad, front-gabled roof with an interior brick chimney. The overhanging roof eaves contain decorative machine 
cut, wooden brackets. 

The west (front) elevation consists of three bays with a centrally located single-leaf door flanked by one-over-one, vinyl windows. 
The main entrance consists of a single-leaf, eight-light wood paneled door enclosed by a simple entablature consisting of square 
wooden pilasters capped by flat pediment with beveled trim. The entrance is accessible from a wooden stoop extending from the 
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center of the elevation. The windows have wood shutters and are capped by classically-influenced, dentilated wood lintels. The 
south elevations of the dwelling consists of three bays containing regular fenestration of three, one-over-one, double-hung, vinyl 
windows. Each of the windows contains wood shutters and are capped with the same classically-influenced dentilated wood lintels 
exhibited with the windows on the east elevation. The east (rear) of the dwelling has one bay that is pierced by one single-leaf, 
eleven-light, wood paneled door. The door, located at the center of the elevation, is accessible via a full-width wood deck . The 
north elevations of the dwelling contains three bays consisting of regular fenestration of three, one-over-one, double-hung, vinyl 
windows containing wood shutters that are capped by classically-influenced, dentilated wood lintels. 

The property contains a one-story concrete block garage constructed circa 1960, which is located approximately twenty-five feet 
northeast of the dwelling. The garage is capped by an asphalt-shingle clad, front-gabled roof and is pierced by a garage opening 
on its south elevation containing an overhead wood paneled door. A lean-to shelter with concrete block walls extends from the 
west side of the garage. 

The One Room Schoolhouse is associated with late nineteenth/early twentieth century education in Howard County, Maryland. 
During the late nineteenth century, Howard County began initiatives to modernize their schools. In 1868, many county schools 
were in poor condition (Stillman 1926:25). At this time, Howard County contained six districts. The number of schools in each 
district varied depending upon rural population demographics. Schools during the nineteenth century were usually one or two 
room buildings located at populated cross roads or towns. The lack ofreliable road networks dictated the need for smaller schools 
as students needed to walk to school. 

Between 1870 and 1880, Student population in Howard County increased by 279 pupils. This included a surge in the number of 
African-American schools in the county, which increased from one in 1869 to six in 1873. The county embarked on a school 
building program to increase facilities. By 1886, Howard County contained 53 schools as compared to 44 schools only a decade 
earlier. In 1888, it was reported that one or two new schools were being constructed each year. In 1891, the school levy had 
increased to provide sufficient funds for school supplies, which included blackboards, stoves, and furniture, as well as money for 
repair of existing schools and for construction of new schools. School construction began to wane during the early 1900s. In 1908 
Howard County contained 56 primary schools. Thirty-one were one room schools, eight were two rooms schools, three were three 
room schools, and there were fourteen African-American schools (Stillman 1926:26-31 ). 

In 1916, the State of Maryland began efforts to consolidate the small one, two, and three room schoolhouses into multiple 
classroom buildings. Many educational professionals looked upon consolidation as the path for better quality education. Larger 
schools provided more teachers with different skills and knowledge sets, and it also allowed for more diverse learning experiences 
than was possible with the small rural schoolhouse. The primary hardship associated with school consolidation involved 
transportation, and it was the county's responsibility for the transportation of students to and from school. Legislation passed by 
the State of Maryland in 1916 stated , "The county board of education shall consolidate schools whenever in their judgment it is 
practicable and arrange, when possible without charge to the county, and shall pay when necessary, for transportation of pupils to 
and from consolidated schools." (Stillman 1926:43) Newly constructed consolidated schools included Savage High School 
(1921), Elkridge High School (1922) and West Friendship High School (1925). Between 1923 and 1924, 8 one room school 
houses closed and 42 students were transported to consolidated schools. The one room school houses continued to close as school 
consolidation progressed during the 1920s and 1930s (Stillman 1926:37,43). 

The One Room Schoolhouse on Sykesville Road was one of the one room schools constructed as part ofa county wide school 
building effort between 1880 and 1900 in response to increasing student population, The Board of School Commissioners of 
Howard County acquired the property from Theodore and Margaret Mottu for the construction of a school house in 1891. Deed 
records note the property as containing 2500 square yards located along the public road leading from West Friendship to 
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Sykesville (Howard County Deeds 1891: Liber JHO 57, Folio 400). The USGS quadrangle from 1906 shows the school as being 
located along east side of Sykesville Road. The county operated a school at this location until 1939, when it sold the property to 
William McDonald (Howard County Deeds 1939:Liber 162 Folio 240). The school was converted into a dwelling sometime after 
this date. Following McDonald' s death in 1968, his widow Hilda McDonald sold the property to Terry and Mariam Dearing in 
1973 (HCD 1968:Liber 622 Folio 22). Following the death of her husband Terry, Merriam Dearing sold the property to the 
current owner, Jason Dearing in 2008 (Howard County Deeds 2008: Liber 11233 Folio 521). 

The One Room Schoolhouse is not eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places because of signficant alterations 
and a lack of integrity. Being associated with an important county initiative to expand school facilities during the late nineteenth 
century, the One Room Schoolhouse meets National Register Criterion A. However, the building no longer retains integrity to 
convey its significance having been extensively altered in the conversion into a residence. The current exterior cladding, roof, and 
all of the windows date from the mid-to-late twentieth century. The decorative machine cut brackets and window and door 
surrounds, and the door and the deck on the east elevation are also part of twentieth century renovations to the building. The 
conversion of the school into a residence has also resulted in the partitioning of the interior into individual rooms. With the loss of 
significant portions of the original exterior materials dating to when the building was used as a schoolhouse and its subsequent 
interior redesign as a residence, the building no longer retains integrity of design, materials, feeling, and association. Because the 
building no longer regains sufficient integrity to convey its significance as a one-room schoolhouse, it is not recommended for 
listing on the NRHP. For the same reason, the building does not possess sufficient architectural integrity to convey significance 
under Criterion C. Better preserved examples of one room schoolhouses remain extant within the local communities. Both the 
Pfeiffer' s Comer School House (H0-441) and the Sykesville Schoolhouse Museum are better local extant architectural examples 
of schoolhouse construction. Historical research has not determined the property to have any significant associations with 
individuals important to history that would meet Criterion B. The property was not evaluated under Criterion D. The historic 
boundary for the One-Room Schoolhouse consists of all of parcel 88 of Tax Map 9, consisting of .517 acres. 
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Maryland State Highway Administration 
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Photo Log 

Project No.: H0210A21 
Project Name: MD 32 from MD 99 to Amberwoods Way 
MIHP No.: H0-1137 
MIHP Name: One Room Schoolhouse 
County: Howard 
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Date: June 19, 2014 
Ink and Paper Combination: True Black and White on Matte Photo Paper (100 Year Archival 
Quality) 
CD/DVD: Verbatim, DVD-R, Archival Gold 

Ima~e File Name Description of View 
H0-1137 2014-06-19 01.tif West and South Elevations, Looking Northeast 
H0-1137 2014-06-19 02.tif East and South Elevations, Looking Northwest 
H0-1137 2014-06-19 03.tif Window Detail, Looking North 
H0-1137 2014-06-19 04.tif Garage, Looking North - -


















